COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE

COLOMA COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

AND THE

NORTHERN BERRIEN COUNTY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, MEA/NEA

2022-2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE
ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION
ARTICLE 2 RIGHTS OF THE BOARD
ARTICLE 3 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS
ARTICLE 4 TEACHER RIGHTS
ARTICLE 5 DUTIES - TEACHING HOURS - CLASS LOADS
ARTICLE 6 TEACHER EVALUATION
ARTICLE 7 SENIORITY
ARTICLE 8 PAID LEAVE
ARTICLE 9 UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE
ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
ARTICLE 11 NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES
ARTICLE 12 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE 13 SALARY SCHEDULE
ARTICLE 14 EXTRA-CURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE
ARTICLE 15 ATHLETIC SALARY SCHEDULE

ARTICLE 16 FRINGE	BENEFITS	34
ARTICLE 17 SCHOOL	YEAR CALENDAR	36
ARTICLE 18 TERM O	F AGREEMENT	37
APPENDIX A	MENTOR TEACHER	38
APPENDIX B	MERIT PAY	40

This Agreement entered into this 20th day of July, 2022, by and between the Board of Education of the Coloma Community Schools, hereinafter called the "Board", and the Northern Berrien County Education Association, MEA/NEA, hereinafter called the Association. R-22

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement have a statutory obligation, pursuant to the Public Employment Relations Act of 1947, as amended, to bargain with respect to hours, wages, terms and conditions of employment for the members of the bargaining unit, and

WHEREAS, the Board has been delegated certain powers by the State of Michigan in its legislative enactments and its constitution as compiled in the Michigan School Code, and R-96

WHEREAS, the parties have reached certain understandings which they desire to conform in this Agreement. In consideration of the following mutual covenants, it is hereby agreed as follows:

Article 1: Recognition

Bargaining Unit Defined:

The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive and sole bargaining agent as defined in Section II of Act 336, Public Acts of 1947, as amended, for all personnel in the appropriate bargaining unit, described and defined as:

All full-time and regular part-time teaching personnel and school social workers, excluding Superintendent, Director of Curriculum/State/Federal Programs, Director of Business Services, principals, assistant principals, Instructional Specialists, Director of Transportation, Director of Custodians, Director of Special Education, Purchasing Agent, Coordinator of Student Affairs and other supervisors and administrators, substitute teachers and all other persons employed or to be employed by the Coloma Community School's Board of Education or any other employer.

R-16

Terms:

The terms "teacher" or "employee," singular or plural, when used hereinafter in this Agreement, shall refer to all personnel represented by the Association in the bargaining unit as defined above, and references to one gender shall include the other gender. Certification is defined as the teacher's Michigan Department of Education certification. The District's hiring will comply with all State and Federal laws. R-13

NBCEA/Coloma Representatives:

This Agreement is between the Northern Berrien County Education Association (NBCEA) and the Coloma Community Schools. The administration of this Agreement for the Association is fully delegated to the local Coloma representatives of NBCEA. Said representatives shall be members of the Association who are also members of the bargaining unit and the names and positions of these local Association representatives shall be given to the Superintendent, in writing, upon ratification of this Agreement and this list shall be updated as changes are made.

Article 2: Rights of the Board

The Board, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the District, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws of the United States, including, but without limiting, the generality of the foregoing, the right:

- A. To the executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities:
- B. To hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and the condition for their continued employment or their dismissal or demotion, and to promote and transfer all such employees;
- C. To establish grades and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational and social events for students, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board;
- D. To decide upon the means and methods of instruction, the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials, and the use of teaching aids of every kind and nature;
- E. To determine class schedules, the hours of instruction, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of teachers and other employees with respect thereto, and non-teaching activities, and the terms and conditions of employment.

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan and the Constitution and the laws of the United States. Nothing contained herein shall be considered to deny or restrict the Board of its rights, responsibilities, and authority under the Michigan General School Laws or any other national, state, county, district or local laws or regulations as they pertain to education.

Article 3: Association Rights

- A. Pursuant to the Michigan Public Employment Relations Act, the Board and the Association hereby agree that teachers shall have the right to freely organize, join and support the Association for the purpose of engaging in collective negotiation and other concerted activities not prohibited by law for mutual aid and protection. The Board and the Association undertake and agree that they will not directly or indirectly discourage, deprive or coerce any teacher in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by the Act or other laws of Michigan and the United States, that they will not discriminate against any teacher with respect to hours, wages, or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association, his/her participation in any legal activities of the Association or collective professional negotiations with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding with respect to any terms or conditions of employment under this Agreement or non-participation in such activities. R-19
- B. The Association and its representatives shall have the right to use school buildings and rooms for meetings of teachers employed by the Board when it does not conflict with other scheduled events, provided that when special custodial service is required, the Board may make an actual cost charge for said custodian.
- C. Duly authorized representatives of the Association and their respective affiliates shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property provided that this shall not interfere with school operations and that such persons who are not teachers check-in with that building's office prior to transacting such business.
- D. The Board is not responsible for providing meeting space, equipment or materials to the Association or any other organization and it maintains its rights to direct the use of such space, equipment and materials. The Board will, however, give every consideration to a request by the Association for the use of space, equipment and materials. The use of such space, equipment and materials may be subject to a reasonable charge, at the discretion of the administration.
- E. The Association shall have the right to post non-partisan notices of its activities in matters of Association concern on teacher bulletin boards and locations not ordinarily accessible to students. It is understood that it is not permissible to post the names of non-union members. All Association material so posted will be identified, in writing, as Association material. It is recognized that providing a means of communication for members of the Association is not the responsibility of the Board. The Association will have the right to use district email and the regular district mail service and teacher mailboxes for communication to teachers. The Association shall indemnify and save the Board harmless from any and all liability that may arise out of or by reason of actions taken by the Board to comply with this paragraph, provided that the District does not initiate any such legal action. The Association shall, when the Board is sued individually or jointly, make available competent legal counsel for such defense at the expense of the Association and the MEA and NEA. The Association shall have the right to negotiate a settlement to any such action. R-22
- F. A joint committee composed of Board representatives and local Association representatives shall meet together, as needed, for the purpose of discussion of any or all items which are of interest to the teachers and/or the school district. The parties shall endeavor to schedule such meetings within ten (10) working days of the request.
- G. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.

- H. Individual contracts entered into within the duration of this Agreement with those within the negotiating unit as defined in Article I shall be made expressly subject to the terms of this Agreement.
- I. All requests for information as stipulated in the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) shall generally be forwarded to the teacher within five (5) days. The Association shall pay for the cost to respond to such a request, including the hourly wages for the lowest paid employee capable of retrieving the information and duplication costs. R-02
- J. The provisions of this Agreement shall be considered part of the established policies of the District. R-19

Article 4: Teacher Rights

A. The Board recognizes its responsibility to continue to give administrative backing to its teachers, although each teacher bears the primary responsibility for maintaining proper control and discipline in the classroom. The Board recognizes its responsibilities to give support and assistance to teachers with respect to maintenance of control and discipline in the classroom. R-96

The teachers recognize that all disciplinary actions and methods invoked by them shall be reasonable and just, and in accordance with established Board policy. The Board's discipline policy, which the parties agree to follow, shall be made available on the District's website. It shall be the responsibility of the teacher to report to his/her principal the name of any student who, in the opinion of the teacher, needs particular assistance from skilled personnel. The teacher shall, upon request, be advised by the principal of the disposition of the teacher's report that a particular student needs such assistance.

R-16

B. A teacher may, at all times, use reasonable force to protect himself/herself, any district employee, or a student from immediate physical injury or in other instances as authorized by the school code. Any case of attempted or actual assault or verbal or written threat upon a teacher, which had in its inception in a school-centered problem, shall be reported immediately to the teacher's immediate supervisor. In the event of such an assault, the teacher involved may request the assistance of the District. This request from the teacher shall be reduced to writing and be given to the Superintendent or his/her designated representative, who shall make a determination as to whether the incident necessitates assistance from the District and/or law enforcement authorities, and the extent thereof. Said teacher will be given written notification of the determination and/or status within five (5) working days. R-09

In the event the teacher is charged with assaulting a student while on duty, the District shall, upon the request of the teacher, advise the teacher of his/her rights and possible recourse. Any assistance provided by the Board beyond this shall be provided to the extent covered by the Board's liability insurance. Time lost by a teacher in defense of his/her action in connection with any incident mentioned in this Article shall not be charged against the teacher, provided the teacher was found not to be at fault and was acting in accordance with Board policies and/or administrative directives.

- C. Any complaint directed toward a Teacher shall be promptly called to the Teacher's attention unless otherwise prohibited by law or unless the Superintendent (or Supervisor) determines that additional time is needed to secure evidence or ensure the integrity of an investigation. This requirement shall not prevent the Supervisor from screening out petty gripes. N-22
- D. Each teacher shall have the right, upon request, to review the contents of one's own personnel file, whether maintained at the individual building or District Administration Building, except confidential material, such as placement credentials and anecdotal notes maintained by an Administrator. This review shall only be conducted in the presence of an administrator or designee. A representative of the Association may, at the teacher's request, accompany the teacher in this review. The teacher shall have the right to file a response to material on file and said response shall become part of the personnel file. In the event a teacher disagrees with personnel file material, he/she may file a written rebuttal within thirty (30) days of receipt of such material. R-96
- E. The Board will reimburse teachers for any damage or destruction of clothes or personal items while on duty on the premises of the school district up to \$750.00 per incident. R-22

F. The Board shall promulgate policy regarding the appropriate use of physical force by teachers. A copy of the same shall be made available on the District's website. Said policy shall be consistent with the laws of the State of Michigan, but the question of legality shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. R-16

Changes in the policy regarding physical force shall be communicated to the Association upon Board approval. R-16 moved R-22

G. The district shall provide books, periodicals, paper and supplies, and technological support (data projector, classroom computer, access to internet, and photocopying services) for each classroom. When teachers are responsible for ordering textbooks and supplies for the following school year, the administration shall provide the student enrollment projections necessary to make such requisition by five (5) days prior to the end of the school year. R-16

H. Teacher Representation

Teachers shall be entitled to representation by the Association in accordance with court orders and statutory mandates. R-19

I. Teaching Materials

Prior to changing, selecting, or upgrading resources, affected teachers will be notified and given opportunity to meet and consult with the Building Administrator or Superintendent/designee regarding the proposed change. R-16

The teachers shall also have the right to make recommendations to the Administration pertaining to system-wide needs for acquisition and replacement of teaching tools. Such recommendations will not be made by the teachers unless a prior requisition for such material has been submitted to the respective building Principals. R-16

J. Teachers will be notified of FOIA requests for their personnel file prior to the release of the information. This, however, shall not preclude compliance with statutory timelines. R-02

Article 5: Duties - Teaching Hours - Class Loads

An administrative review board composed of the Superintendent and a designated representative, and the two designated local representatives of the Association, shall be convened at the request of a teacher or principal and shall make requests to the Board of Education with regard to teacher-pupil ratio. The Board of Education and the administration shall arrive at a teacher-pupil ratio as finances, classrooms and teachers become available. The District shall maintain a cap of twenty-five (25) students per classroom in Kindergarten, shall maintain a cap of twenty-eight (28) students per classroom in grades 1-5, and shall maintain a goal of a cap of thirty (30) students to one (1) teacher per classroom in grades 6-12, specifically excluding music and physical education. The district will try to maintain a cap of thirty-eight (38) students per K-5 special. Both parties recognize that allowances shall be made for temporary migrant students in calculating class size. In the event a class size exceeds the cap for a grade K-12 teacher, the District shall meet representatives of the Association to resolve issues that necessitate class sizes that exceed the stated cap. R-22

If the meeting between the representatives of the District and representatives of the Association does not conclude with a different solution, K-5 regular classroom teachers who are assigned a class which exceeds the above mentioned cap shall receive an additional \$100.00 per student, per semester. 6-12 teachers who are assigned a class which exceed the goal of a cap of students mentioned above shall receive an additional \$40.00 per student per semester. Dates to determine caps of students for compensation will be the fall October count day for the first semester and the spring count day in February for the second semester. N-21

B. The certified staff contact day is to be no more than seven (7) hours and two (2) minutes inclusive of a 30-minute duty free lunch period. Teachers shall be notified of the building start and end times by August 1st prior to the subsequent school year. N-16

Teachers shall be expected to be on duty for an additional thirty (30) minutes beyond the defined school day. Based on need and assignment, the District may determine how this time is allocated before or after the school day with the understanding that the allocation at the beginning or the end of the day does not exceed twenty (20) minutes. Prior to the beginning of the school year, the district shall define the allocation of the thirty (30) minutes for each teacher. N-16

Before and after school hours, and during non-teacher periods, a teacher has the right to be absent from his/her classroom area to take care of such normal teaching functions as duplicating tests, making telephone calls, checking mailboxes and/or checking out media. If not performing these tasks, each teacher, as a part of his/her duties, will be responsible for his/her classroom and the halls in the immediate vicinity of the classroom. A teacher will not leave his/her classroom unsupervised if children are present therein, except in cases of emergency or by administrative directive.

To provide opportunity for both elementary and intermediate teachers to coach District-provided athletics, the parties agree that teachers who do not have student contact time during their last period, may leave early to coach, provided that they fulfill the contractual work day. Such teachers will report to work early on days they leave early and make themselves available to students and families during that morning time. A list of coaches affected will be given to the CEA president each session. R-16

- C. Teaching Load and Substitutions
 - 1. Secondary Grades (6-12)

If a teacher is regularly assigned to teach more than his/her normal teaching load, he/she shall be compensated an additional 1/6th of his/her base salary. Teachers assigned a multi-discipline regular academic teaching load that exceeds three preps shall be compensated an additional 2% of his/her base salary. If a teacher substitute teaches during his/her planning period, he/she shall be compensated \$40.00 per class period. R-22

2. Definition of teacher load is as follows:

6 period day - teachers are assigned 5 classes and one conference period. 7 period day - teachers are assigned 6 classes and one conference period.

Response to Intervention (RTI) is not a separate class or preparation. Teachers who do not have students assigned to them during this period will be reassigned to assist students by the building administrator as part of the teacher's normal teaching load. N-21

3. Elementary Grades (K-5)

Elementary classroom teachers shall have scheduled at least two hundred sixty (260) minutes per week of non-instructional time as scheduled by the principal during the instructional day. This time shall exclude recess period in which the teacher serves as supervisor, lunch period, and the time before and after normal student contact hours. If a teacher substitute teaches during his/her planning period, he/she shall be compensated \$40.00 per class period. R-22

The normal teacher work day shall be defined as contact time plus the additional 30 minute duty time as defined in Article 6.B. R-16

4. If a substitute cannot be secured for the K-12 buildings, all certified staff shall be part of the substitute rotation during their planning time. The faculty and administration will cooperate in covering the classes of absent teachers where the District is unable to secure a per diem substitute. Teachers interested in voluntarily performing substitute service during their planning period shall notify their building Principal at the beginning of the year. Coverage shall be allocated on a half period basis, unless a substitute consents to cover the entire class period. Such substitutions will be allocated on a rotational basis among those teachers having a common planning period. If there are an insufficient number of volunteers in a given building, the administration shall assign needed coverage on a rotational basis in inverse order of seniority among the teachers in a particular building having a common planning period. N-22

Administration and office staff shall provide coverage in the event of extreme sub shortage or in emergency cases. N-22

In the event that a teacher is assigned to more than one building, they shall only be required to be on the sub rotation for one building. For the purposes of substitute coverage the buildings are defined as K-5, Junior High (6-8), and High School (9-12). R-22

It is understood that such involuntary assignment will be made in emergency circumstances (e.g. teacher illness during school day) or where a substitute cannot be procured after reasonable effort.

The District shall provide substitute reports including roster and assignments to the Association upon request. N-22

- 5. Where classes are combined due to the absence of the regularly assigned classroom teacher, the teacher with the increased teaching load shall receive the rate of pay of \$40.00 per class period in addition to his/her normal salary. R-22
- 6. In the event that two classes are combined due to the absence of the regularly assigned teachers and requiring lesson plans for both absent teachers, the teacher subbing during their prep period shall receive \$40.00 per each assignment in addition to his/her regular salary. It is recognized that supervisory assignments that combine classes shall constitute one sub assignment requiring sub pay at the current rate of \$40.00 per class period R-22
- D. Building policy concerning teacher responsibilities and duties should be issued by the Board or its designated agents to teachers new to the system or building. Board Policy is available via the district's webpage. R-19
- E. All teachers shall attend meetings called by the administration as a regular part of their teaching duties unless otherwise excused by the administration.
 - 1. The building principal may designate one (1) day of the week which may be used for meetings to consider problems related to the instructional program and/official functioning of the school no later than the first full week of school. These meetings will last no more than sixty (60) minutes after student dismissal. If needed for training or in the case of an emergency, the meeting may be extended by up to 15 minutes. Each building will have no more than two (2) meetings per month. The building principal will develop the annual meeting schedule prior to the first day of school. Attendance at each meeting is required unless previous arrangements have been made with the building principal. For example, if a staff member is scheduled to coach a previously scheduled athletic contest that conflicts with the meeting. An unexcused absence may result in a disciplinary action against the absent teacher. Sign-in and sign-out are required at all meetings. Building principals will use memos, email or staff newsletters as much as they can in an effort to minimize the amount of time devoted to staff meetings. Staff are responsible and accountable for content contained in any such communication.

Emergency meetings may be called by the building principal at any time. Attendance by teachers shall be required during the regular work day and during reporting time before and after working hours.

Part-time teachers will be required to attend all district PD hours/meetings. N-22

2. Teachers may be required to attend up to:

Two (2) hours of open house/orientation in the week preceding or during the first two weeks of the school year to provide parents/students the necessary information to begin the school year successfully.

Up to six (6) hours of time outside the contractual school day for parent/teacher conferences during the first semester of the school year as agreed to in the district calendar.

Up to three (3) hours of time outside the contractual day for parent/teacher conferences during the second semester at the Elementary/Intermediate Schools or to be used as time for parent involvement activities at the Junior High/High Schools, as determined by the building principals. R-22

Teaching staff shall be notified of the dates and times of these designated events no later than August 1st. N-22

- F. A general lesson plan for the week will be made available to the building principal or designee at the beginning of the day on Mondays via the digital platform selected by the district. Teachers shall be informed by the building principal as soon as practicable of the schedule of events involving the student body, i.e. pep assemblies, state testing, and other activities which change the routine scheduling. If a teacher is absent a detailed lesson plan will be provided for the substitute. R-22
- G. In cases of emergency, any teacher who cannot make the scheduled starting time will notify the building principal.
- H. All teachers will be entitled to duty-free lunch periods for at least 30 minutes, as scheduled in each building. Teachers may accept or volunteer for noon supervision on a paid basis. K-12, a minimum of \$2000.00, R-22
- I. Teachers who volunteer for student teachers shall be of tenure status, not subject to a plan of assistance, and hold a minimum of a provisional certificate. No student teacher shall be assigned to more than two supervising teachers. R-99
- J. 1. Reimbursement at the current approved CCS Board Policy, not to exceed current IRS rate, per mile shall be allowed for pre-authorized use of personal cars for approved school business by the superintendent or his/her designee. Teachers who use their personal cars as part of their work requirements, for example travel between two buildings, shall be reimbursed for the mileage at the IRS rate. N-22
 - 2. No teacher shall be required to work a split shift or to teach less than two (2) hours in any Summer School program. Teachers shall be compensated at the rate of \$40.00 per hour. Teachers assigned to the above positions shall not acquire tenure-type status in these positions. R-22
 - 3. Teachers who are assigned home school, online virtual academy, or tutoring assignments for suspended students shall be compensated at the rate of \$40.00 per hour for school year for outside school day. R-13
- K. The Board shall make reasonable effort to provide, in each school, adequate lunchroom, restroom and lavatory facilities exclusively for teacher use. At least one room appropriately furnished shall be reserved for use as a faculty room. Provisions for such facilities will be made in all future buildings as finances permit. R-96
- L. Assignments (such as sponsorship, coaching activities, and other extracurricular activities), which are in addition to the normal teaching schedule during the regular school year, shall be voluntary on the part of the teachers involved.
- M. The teacher's non-teaching period is a part of every teacher's working day exclusive of lunch period. This time is to be used for parent-teacher conferences, student-conferences, conferences with administration; instructional planning and preparation—including collaborative planning and preparation as determined by the building principal in consultation with teachers and work teams; instructional coaching; and non-classroom supervision, as determined by staff and principal of each building. R-16

- N. Teachers new to the system will report two days prior to the beginning of instructional duties for district and building orientation. Probationary teachers shall be provided with a minimum of ninety (90) hours of professional development during their first three (3) years of classroom teaching. If professional development is provided by the ISD, the District will assume the cost. Probationary teachers who fail to complete the requisite 90 hours may be subject to nonrenewal. R-16
- O. The parties acknowledge that the teaching professional is uniquely qualified to contribute to the improvement of the educational programs of the District through teacher participation in the school improvement process. Teacher participation outside of regular working hours is voluntary. R-13

P. Teacher Certification

Teachers are responsible for maintaining their Michigan teaching certification and being compliant with Michigan Department of Education certification requirements. The district shall reimburse teachers the cost of the fee for their teaching certification renewal on a prorated basis of \$32 per year, payable by October 1st of the school year. N-22

Q. Coloma Community Schools is committed to the Professional Learning Community at Work (PLC) that offers a systems approach to school improvement. As part of the PLC, teachers are organized into grade level, course specific, or interdisciplinary collaborative teams in which educators work interdependently to achieve common goals for which members are mutually accountable. It is recognized that the administration, in consultation with the PLC teams, has the right to appoint PLC team leaders accordingly: at grade level K-5 (six positions); core subject areas 6-8 (four positions) and 9-12 (five positions)--Science, Language Arts, Social Studies, Math, and CTE--; Specials K-12 (one position); and World Languages 6-12 (one position). Teachers within the PLC team shall have the right to reject appointment as PLC Leader. The administration shall make the final decision respecting the appointment.

In fulfilling the role of leading their team, PLC team leaders are responsible for such functions as leading the team in preparing and utilizing team norms, planning agendas, chairing meetings, serving as a direct communications link between the administration and the faculty, leading the work of teams in analyzing and improving student learning data, seeking out and experimenting with best practices, leading the collaborative development and attainment of learning improvement goals, and identifying and communicating professional development needs. N-19

R. Mentor Teachers R-96

- 1. A mentor teacher shall be defined as a master teacher as identified in Section 1526 of the School Code and shall perform the duties of a master teacher as specified in the Code.
- 2. Probationary teachers in his/her first three (3) years in teaching shall be assigned a mentor teacher by the administration. The administration shall notify the Association when an appointment is made.
- 3. If a mentor teacher is from the bargaining unit:
 - a. The mentor teacher shall be a tenured member.
 - b. Participation as a mentor teacher shall be voluntary.

- c. The mentor assignment shall be for one (1) school year subject to review of the mentor teacher and mentor after four (4) months. The appointment may be renewed in succeeding years.
- d. The mentor shall receive \$150.00 for the first year of probation, \$100.00 for the second year of probation and \$50.00 for the third year of probation subject to published guidelines. R-05
- 4. The employer shall reimburse mentor teachers reasonable expenses for training.
- S. Should the Board consider changing the instructional day, the Board shall notify the Association of its intent and include the Association in the planning process. R-13
- T. Teachers shall not be primarily responsible for catheterization, diapering, suctioning, or the administration of medication to students, provided however the teacher shall receive training and perform such duties in emergency situations. N-96
- U. Within each building, efforts shall be made to equally distribute special education students within a grade level or class sections. On a building-wide basis, teachers and the administrator shall meet to discuss means to effectively serve special education students. N-96
- V. 1. The prospective classroom teacher shall be consulted before the scheduling of IEPC meetings and may attend whenever the teacher's schedule permits at no additional pay. R-16
 - 2. If the IEPC is scheduled to start within twenty-nine (29) minutes before or after the end of the teachers' workday, the teacher(s) will not receive additional compensation. However, if the meeting is scheduled to start thirty minutes or more before or after the end of the teacher work day, the teacher(s) will receive one-hour pay at \$40.00. R-22

Article 6: Teacher Evaluation

Α.	At the evalu	ation conference,	the teacher shal	l sign the eva	luation and a	ι copy will be	furnished to
	the teacher.	Said signature sh	all only indicate	receipt of the	e evaluation.	R-19	
			<u>-</u>				

Article 7: Seniority

- A. The term "seniority", as used herein, shall be defined as the number of consecutively contracted years of experience in the Coloma School system. A Board granted leave of absence does not constitute a break in the "consecutive" contracted years of experience. Administrative experience will be considered the same as teaching experience for the purpose of determining seniority (one year for one year) for administrators employed by the district on or before September 1, 2002 and who are later transferred to a teaching position. Administrators hired after September 1, 2002, and who have not previously worked at Coloma Community Schools as a teacher shall not accrue bargaining unit seniority. R-13
- B. 1. Seniority begins the date of the first contract date signed as a certified employee of Coloma Schools.
 - 2. When there was or is only a month date available as to when a teacher started at Coloma, the seniority date will become the first contracted day of that month. Example: contract signed September 1975, on the seniority list it would appear as September 6, 1975.
 - 3. For teacher contract purposes, 181 days will be equal to one year. R-16
 - 4. A teacher shall not accumulate seniority during periods of Board approved unpaid leaves and layoffs. During these periods, the teacher's seniority shall remain frozen at that amount accumulated prior to the leave or layoff. This shall not constitute a break in service; however, the teacher shall have his/her years of service adjusted accordingly.
 - 5. In the event the seniority is equal for any number of teachers, the following point system shall be used to determine the order of listing: R-13
 - a. One point per year of teaching experience.
 - b. One point per year of teaching experience in the Coloma Community Schools.
 - c. Three points for a masters' degree.
- C. A seniority list shall be prepared by the Board by November 30th of each school year. The list shall show the employee's seniority, certification and major and minor areas of study. A copy of this seniority list shall be transmitted to the Association and to each individual teacher. Any errors in the seniority list shall be brought to the attention of the District within twenty (20) school days after it has been distributed. Thereafter, the list shall be final for that school year. R-02
- D. Teachers will not be entitled to any compensation or fringe benefits while on layoff, except those teachers who complete a full year shall have their insurance premium contributions made by the Board continued through August of that year. However, subject to approval and regulations of the carrier, teachers will be allowed to make premium payments towards health insurance.
- E. Notice of recall shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the last official address of the employee as reflected in the employer's records. It is the responsibility of the employee to inform the Board of any changes of address. If an employee fails to notify the Board of intent to return on the date specified in the notice or within ten (10) calendar days of delivery of said notice, whichever is later, or within five (5) calendar days that said notice is determined non-deliverable, said employee shall be considered a voluntary quit and shall thereby terminate his/her individual employment

contract and any other employment relationship with the Board. In the event the recall notice is determined non-deliverable, the District shall so notify the Association.

Article 8: Paid Leave

- A. Teachers shall be entitled to twelve (12) paid leave days per year, three (3) of which may be used for personal business and for which a reason need not be given. Personal business days are non-cumulative; however, the other days may be accumulated from year to year to a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days. Teachers hired after the first day of school or on extended leave will have their days prorated to match their actual time worked. Teachers hired on or after July 1, 1992, shall be allowed maximum accumulation of one hundred fifty (150) days. Teachers on staff prior to July 1, 1992, who had accumulated 180 days shall be entitled to retain that accumulation. R-19
- B. Personal business days may not be used immediately before and after a vacation period, school recess or holiday. Personal business days may not be used consecutively or in conjunction with any other paid leave day. They will be deducted from paid leave days. Exemptions, based on special extenuating circumstances, may be approved by the Superintendent. N-21
 - 1. At the end of the school year, unused personal business days shall be converted to teacher paid leave days and applied to the teacher's paid leave day bank. R-16
 - 2. A notification for personal business day(s) will be submitted in writing to the substitute service agency online at least seven days prior to the intended date(s) of absence whenever possible. Emergency leave will be granted as soon as the nature of the emergency has been explained to the building principal and appropriate arrangements can be made. R-19
 - 3. Personal business days may also be used for religious observances which are obligatory for a teacher due to written denominational law. Any additional days required for the foregoing purpose shall be taken as unpaid leave days. R-02
- C. The Superintendent may require a teacher to submit to a physical and/or mental examination by a physician of the Board's selection to determine whether involuntary sick leave is warranted. Such requested examinations will be at the Board's expense.
- D. 1. If a teacher is absent due to personal sickness, it is expected that said teacher shall be either at home or seeking medical attention.
 - 2. The Superintendent may request a teacher to provide a physician statement of specific reason for said absence (example: bronchitis, not illness) after the seventh (7th) day or three (3) consecutive days of sick leave in a school year or if abuse is suspected. Said reason shall be forwarded to the Superintendent. Upon review of the Superintendent on a case-by-case basis, it is recognized that certain extended absences requiring medical care, necessitating sick and/or family leave, may be considered an exception from the stipulated absence policy. Medical statements will be retained only in a separate confidential file in the central office. These statements will not be subject to FOIA. R-19
- E. Teachers shall be informed of the procedure to report unavailability for teaching. Teachers shall report as soon as they have knowledge that they will be unavailable to work. Teachers shall make every effort to report by ninety (90) minutes before their required reporting time. If not, they will not be given credit for a paid day and will lose a day's pay unless an emergency is involved wherein advance notice could not be given. Once a teacher has reported, it becomes the responsibility of the administration to arrange for a substitute. R-16

- F. The administration must arrange for a substitute for all absent teachers and will call on other teachers to "fill in" only if the ninety (90) minutes advance notice has not been given, if a substitute cannot be obtained, or if a teacher has to leave during a working day. Allocation of these responsibilities will be as set forth in Article 5(c4) of this Agreement. R-22
- G. Paid leave may be used for members of the immediate family provided that the illness is serious enough to require medical attention. Additional paid leave may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent or his/her designated agent. The days will be deducted from accumulated paid leave. R-16
- H. If it is necessary for a teacher to be absent from duty due to illness or injury compensable under the Michigan Workers' Compensation Act, the teacher shall receive the difference between his/her net salary and the amount received as Workers' Compensation benefits up to the employee's accumulated paid leave. The salary differential shall be figured on a percentage basis and the same percentage shall be deducted from the teacher's accumulated paid leave. (For example: if Workers' Compensation pays 60% of the net pay amount, paid leave will pay only 40% and the teacher's paid leave accumulation shall be charged .4 of a day for each day used.) R-16
- I. The District shall not be required to allow proportional use of paid leave days where a teacher is receiving workers' compensation benefits in the event that the District's Workers' Compensation carrier determines that such sick leave payments are required to be coordinated under Section 354 of the Workers' Compensation Act, MCLA 418.354. In that event the teacher shall receive only the Workers' Compensation benefits for which he/she is eligible. R-16

J. Bereavement Leave

Five (5) days of bereavement leave may be used for funerals of the following members of a teacher's "immediate family" - significant other, child (including step-children), parent, or other persons for whom teacher is legally responsible. Up to three (3) days of bereavement leave may be used for funerals of the teacher's "immediate family" defined as follows: father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother, sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew. R-13

K. Association Business Days

The Association will be granted a total of twelve (12) business days for Association business during the school year. The Association will reimburse the Coloma Community Schools for any incurred substitute costs and the employee's retirement. R-96

L. Jury Duty

Any teacher who is called to sit on a jury and who is not excused from serving on said jury shall not suffer loss of his/her salary for such time for serving the court. All compensation (less mileage and other court related expenses) received for serving on a jury shall be rendered to the District immediately upon its receipt. Any teacher called to jury duty shall make every effort to be excused from such duty during the school year. The District will support the teacher in his/her attempt to be so excused.

M. Subpoenaed Days

Any teacher subpoenaed to testify during school hours in any judicial matter because of the teacher's role as an employee or other matters subject to superintendent or designee prior approval shall not suffer any loss of his/her regular salary for such time. This provision does not include matters between the teacher and/or the Association and/or the School District. R-02

Article 9: Unpaid Leaves of Absence

A. District Leave

A leave of absence up to one (1) year may be granted to any teacher, upon application, for the purpose of participation in activities deemed beneficial to the school system. R-96

B. Illness and Disability Leave

A teacher shall be granted, upon his/her written application, an unpaid leave of absence to recover from an illness or disability for a period up to the balance of that school year. Thereafter, said leave may be extended at the Board's discretion. A teacher desiring an extension shall so apply at least sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of the next school year.

C. Child Care Leave

The Board, at its discretion, may grant a leave of absence to any teacher for the purpose of child care (<u>including adoption</u>) upon the request of the teacher. Such leaves shall not exceed one (1) year unless extended by the Board, and then only if requested by the teacher.

D. General Conditions for Unpaid Leaves

- 1. Upon return from leave, a teacher shall be restored to his/her same position on the salary schedule as when he/she left and-shall be entitled to other benefits accrued prior to said leave.
- 2. Teachers who are on an unpaid leave of absence must give written notification to the Board or its representative by April 1 that school year as to whether or not they will be returning on the first day of school for teachers in the fall of the next school year. If a teacher is granted a leave of absence with an expiration date other than at the conclusion of an academic year, he/she shall give written notification of intent to return to the Board or its representative at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled date of return.
- 3. In the event a teacher fails to return to work upon expiration of such leave, the teacher shall be terminated and forfeit any further rights the teacher may have under this Agreement, his/her individual contract, or otherwise to employment with the District.

If a teacher fails to provide the written Notice of Return as specified in D (2), the District shall not be obligated to return the teacher from leave at the originally anticipated time and the teacher shall be considered on recall status.

- 4. Premature termination of the leave or re-employment with the District during the term of the leave shall be at the discretion of the Board.
- 5. Leaves of absence to commence at the beginning of a school year shall be submitted by the preceding July 1, except in cases of emergency where the requirement may be waived by the Superintendent. Other leaves shall be requested at least forty-five (45) days in advance, except in cases of emergency where the requirement may be waived by the Superintendent.
- 6. All unpaid leaves are without compensation and benefits under this Agreement.

- E. Family and Medical Leave Act N-96
 - 1. Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act as amended, an employee shall be entitled to an unpaid leave of absence, of up to twelve (12) weeks, during a twelve (12) month period, for one or more of the following:
 - (a) Birth, adoption, or foster care placement of an employee's child;
 - (b) Serious health condition of an employee's spouse, child or parent;
 - (c) The employee's own serious health condition.
 - (d) Other reasons as provided by statute. N-13
 - 2. The Board and the teacher agree to cooperate in scheduling return from leave pursuant to the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act at a time which minimizes disruption to the continuity of education programming and service delivery and consistent with the provisions of the Act and its regulations. R-05
 - 3. The Board of Education will continue premium payments for health care benefits up to twelve (12) weeks for a teacher who has been granted a leave for his/her own illness, to care for a seriously ill family member or for the birth or adoption of a child pursuant to the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act. If the teacher voluntarily terminates employment, the Board shall have the right to recover all premium payments made during the unpaid leave interval. These amounts may permissibly be deducted from any wage or other payments due the teacher, with any deficiency to be remitted by the teacher to the Board within ninety (90) days of demand. N-96
 - 4. Applicable paid leave will be concurrent with FMLA. N-13
 - 5. The employee returning from a leave under this Act shall be returned to his/her previous or equivalent position.
 - 6. Upon request, the teacher shall present a clearance certificate signed by a physician prior to returning to work. The Superintendent shall also have the right to have the teacher examined by a physician of the District's selection at District expense.
- F. Except for FMLA leaves, all other unpaid leaves are without compensation and benefits under this Agreement.
- G. Days referred to in this Article are calendar days.

Article 10: Miscellaneous Provisions

- A. Copies of this Agreement shall be printed at equal expense of the Board and the Association and presented to all contracted teachers now employed or hereafter employed by the Board. The Association shall have twenty-five (25) extra copies for its own use.
- B. During the term of this Agreement neither the Association nor any person acting in its behalf will cause, authorize, or support, or will any of its members or any teachers take part in, any strike (i.e., the concerted failure to report for duty, or willful absence of a teacher from his/her position, or stoppage of work, or abstinence, in whole or in part, from the full faithful and proper performance of the teachers' duties of employment), against the Coloma School District.
- C. If any specific provisions of the Agreement or any specific application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees shall be found contrary to law, then such specific provisions or specific application shall be deemed null and void but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- D. The parties acknowledge that the policy of least restrictive environment is legally mandated. To the extent that the District engages in formal planning for implementation of LRE, the Association shall be notified and represented during such planning.

Article 11: Negotiation Procedures

- A. This Agreement incorporates the entire understanding of the parties on all issues which were or could have been the subject of negotiation. During the term of this Agreement neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.
- B. In the event the parties determine that there exists a mutual concern regarding the administration of this contract, the parties will confer regarding said matter. Such conferences may be initiated by the moving party by making a written request to the other party.
- C. By March 1 before the Agreement's expiration, the Parties shall begin negotiations for a new Agreement covering wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of Teachers employed by the Board. Upon mutual agreement, any Article may be opened for negotiation at any time. N-22
- D. Ground rules for negotiating shall be agreed upon in writing by both Parties prior to the first scheduled bargaining session. N-22
- E. A teacher engaged during the school day in negotiating on behalf of the Association with any representative of the Board or participating in any Grievance Procedure, including Arbitration, shall be released from regular duties without loss of salary. Such release from regular duties shall apply to negotiations scheduled or requested by the Board during the school day. N-22
- F. In any negotiations described in this Article, neither party shall have any control over the selection of the bargaining representatives of the other party, and each party may select its representatives from within or outside the District. It is recognized that no final Agreement between the Parties may be executed without ratification by a majority of the Board and the Association according to their respective procedures; but the parties mutually pledge that representatives selected by each shall be given all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, and make concessions in the course of negotiations or bargaining, subject only to such ultimate ratification. Such representatives shall be empowered to agree to negotiations schedules and procedures. N-22
- G. If the Parties fail to reach an agreement in any such negotiations, either Party may invoke the mediation procedures of the Michigan Employment Relations Commission (MERC) or take any other lawful measures it may deem appropriate. N-22

Article 12: Grievance Procedure

A. A grievance shall be defined as an alleged violation of the expressed terms and conditions of this contract.

The following matters shall not be the basis of any grievance filed under the procedure outlined in this Article:

- 1. The termination of services of or failure to re-employ any teacher. R-13
- 2. Any matter involving teacher evaluation, layoff/recall and assignment, placement and other prohibited subjects of bargaining. R-13
- 3. Any matter for which there is administrative recourse under State or Federal statutes. Questions of jurisdiction under administrative recourse will be decided as threshold issues at arbitration. R-96

The grievance procedure shall not apply to those areas in which the Tenure Act prescribes a procedure or authorizes a remedy.

- B. The Association shall have the right to designate representatives to handle grievances. The Association Representative is the designated spokesperson for the Association assigned to a given building. The Association shall give the administration a written list of designated Association Representatives. An Association officer may act in the place of a building Association Representative provided notice of such substitution is given to the building administrator in advance of the initial grievance processing. R-02
- C. The term "days" as used herein shall mean days in which school is in session, except during the summer break when "days" shall mean when the District's administrative office is open.
- D. Written grievances as required herein shall contain the following:
 - 1. It shall be signed by the grievant or grievants;
 - 2. It shall be specific:
 - 3. It shall contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the alleged violation;
 - 4. It shall cite the section or subsections of this contract alleged to have been violated;
 - 5. It shall contain the date of the alleged violation; and
 - 6. It shall specify the relief requested.

Any written grievance not in accordance with the above requirements, may be rejected as improper. Questions of such rejection may be a threshold issue before an arbitrator.

E. <u>Level One:</u> A teacher believing himself/herself wronged by an alleged violation of the express provisions of this contract shall within ten (10) days of its alleged occurrence orally discuss the grievance with the building principal in an attempt to resolve the same. If no resolution is obtained within five (5) days of the discussion, the teacher shall reduce the grievance to writing and proceed within five (5) additional days to Level Two.

<u>Level Two</u>: A copy of the written grievance shall be filed with the Superintendent or his/her designated agent as specified in Level One. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the grievance, the Superintendent or his/her designated agent shall arrange a meeting with the grievant and/or the

designated association representative at the option of the grievant to discuss the grievance. Within ten (10) days of the discussion the Superintendent or his/her designated agent shall render his/her decision in writing, transmitting a copy of the same to the grievant and the Association grievance chairperson.

If no decision is rendered within ten (10) days of the discussion, or the decision is unsatisfactory to the grievant and the Association, the grievant may appeal same to the Board of Education by filing a written grievance along with the decision of the Superintendent to the secretary of the Board of Education not less than twenty-one (21) days prior to the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

By mutual agreement of the Superintendent and Association, a grievance originally filed at Level One may receive expedited processing to Level Two. R-99

<u>Level Three:</u> Upon proper application as specified in Level Two, the Board may hold a hearing on the grievance, or give such other consideration as it shall deem appropriate. Within one (1) month from the meeting mentioned in the above paragraph, the Board shall render its decision in writing.

A copy of the written decision of the Board shall be forwarded to the Superintendent for permanent filing, the building principal for the building in which the grievance arose, the grievant, and the secretary of the Association.

<u>Level Four</u>: Individual teachers shall not have the right to process a grievance at Level Four.

- 1. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Three, it may within twenty-one (21) days after the decision of the Board refer the matter for arbitration to the American Arbitration Association, in writing, and request the appointment of an arbitrator to hear the grievance. A copy of said demand shall be given to the Superintendent. If the parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator, he/she shall be selected in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association.
- 2. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and conclusive and binding upon employees, the Board and the Association. Subject to the right of the Board or the Association to judicial review, any lawful decision of the arbitrator shall be forthwith placed into effect.
- 3. Powers of the arbitrator are subject to the following limitations:
 - a. He/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.
 - b. He/she shall have no power to establish salary scales or to create any salary level.
 - c. He/she shall have no power to decide any question which, under this Agreement, is decided as a management right, except as they may be specifically conditioned by this Agreement.
 - d. He/she shall have no power to interpret state or federal law.
 - e. He/she shall not hear any grievance previously barred by this contract from the scope of the Grievance Procedure.

- f. If either party disputes the arbitrability of any grievance under the terms of this Agreement, the arbitrator shall have no jurisdiction to render a decision on the merits until he/she has first made a ruling on the issue of arbitrability. By stipulation of the parties, the arbitrator shall have authority to hear both the jurisdictional issues and the merits of a dispute in the same proceeding. Should the arbitrator determine that he/she is without jurisdiction to rule, the matter shall be dismissed without decision on the merits. Submission of jurisdictional issues to the arbitrator shall not be viewed as a waiver by either party of its right to institute civil litigation contesting either the authority of the arbitrator or any award allegedly in excess of such authority.
- g. More than one grievance may not be considered by the arbitrator at the same time except upon expressed written mutual consent and then only if they are of similar nature.
- h. Arbitration awards will not be made retroactive beyond the date of the occurrence or non-occurrence of the event upon which the grievance is based. In no event, however, shall the settlement be earlier than thirty (30) days prior to the date on which the grievance is filed.
- i. The arbitrator shall have no authority to review extracurricular assignments, appointments or reappointment. R-99
- F. Should a teacher fail to institute a grievance or appeal a decision within the time limits specified, or leave the employ of the Board, all further proceedings on a previously instituted grievance shall be barred, provided that if the claim involves a remedy directly benefiting the grievant regardless of his/her employment it shall not be barred by reason that the teacher has left the employ of the Board.
- G. The Association shall have no right to initiate the grievance involving the right to a single teacher without his/her express approval in writing thereon. If the Association initiates a grievance involving a group of teachers, a single teacher shall not be included in said group if he/she requests to be excluded therefrom in writing.
- H. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne by the party determined to be the loser by the arbitrator. The costs of witnesses and other matters shall be solely borne by the parties to those costs.
- I. All preparation, filing, presentation or consideration of grievances shall be held at times other than when a teacher or a participating Association representative are to be at their assigned duty stations.
- J. The time limits and steps provided in this Article shall be strictly observed but may be extended by written agreement of the parties.
- K. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any claim or grievance arising thereunder may be processed through the Grievance Procedure until resolution.
- L. Neither party shall be permitted to assert in arbitration any grounds, defenses or proofs not previously disclosed to the other party at least ten (10) days prior to the arbitration proceeding.
- M. The Superintendent agrees to meet informally with the representatives of the Association upon written request of the Association or the Superintendent for the purpose of discussing problems of mutual concern. These informal discussions shall involve mutual exchange of suggestions and ideas but shall in no sense be considered bargaining. The sole purpose of these conferences is to provide

communication between the Superintendent and the Association to gain better insights and better understandings between the parties, and to promote closer cooperation in all relationships concerning this Agreement. A letter of understanding may be the outcome of these meetings. N-96

Article 13: Salary Schedule

	2022-2023				
-	BA	MA			
Со	ntract \$	Contract \$			
25	\$73,124	\$83,123			
24	\$71,912	\$81,709			
23	\$70,700	\$80,295			
22	\$69,488	\$78,881			
21	\$68,276	\$77,467			
20	\$67,064	\$76,053			
19	\$65,852	\$74,639			
18	\$64,640	\$73,225			
17	\$63,428	\$71,811			
16	\$62,216	\$70,397			
15	\$61,004	\$68,983			
14	\$59,792	\$67,569			
13	\$58,580	\$66,155			
12	\$57,368	\$64,741			
11	\$56,156	\$63,327			
10	\$54,944	\$61,913			
9	\$53,732	\$60,499			
8	\$52,520	\$59,085			
7	\$51,308	\$57,671			
6	\$50,096	\$56,257			
5	\$48,884	\$54,843			
4	\$47,672	\$53,429			
3	\$46,460	\$52,015			
2	\$45,248	\$50,601			
1 .	\$44,036	\$49,187			

R-22

2022-2023 One (1) Step across the Schedule with Service Credit Incentive

One (1) Step for staff with five (5) or more years of service with Coloma Community Schools*

\$1300 bonus/one-time payment

2023-2024 Wage and Insurance Re-opener2024-2025 Wage and Insurance Re-opener

N-22

Service Credit Incentive

Beginning 2023-2024, teachers who have worked in the District shall be advanced one (1) step upon achieving the following years of service with the Coloma Community Schools:

- Five (5) years
- Ten (10) years
- Fifteen (15) years
- Twenty (20) years
- Twenty-five (25) years
- Thirty (30) years

N-22

A. Pay Dates

Each teacher shall receive twenty-six (26) equal payments payable bi-weekly. Salary payments shall be reduced for unpaid time. The District will comply with all court orders or statutory mandates for payroll deductions. R-19

B. Previous Experience

Previous teaching and related experience: A teacher, upon being initially employed by the District, at Superintendent's discretion may be placed on the salary schedule on the basis of one (1) year of credit for each year of teaching experience in an accredited public or private school or related professional experience. This shall be subject to a maximum of five (5) years of credit. The teacher's placement on the schedule shall reflect the year(s) steps on the schedule that were frozen during the period that the service time is granted. Teacher's placement on the salary schedule is not subject to grievance. R-16

C. Salary Advancement

A teacher shall be advanced one step on the salary schedule provided that he/she actually worked at least fifty percent (50%) of the contracted teacher days in the school year, as defined in the negotiated school calendar. Those teachers working less than the requisite 50% of the days during the school year shall not be advanced on the salary schedule. No half-steps shall be granted for salary schedule advancement purposes. For 2014-2015 and beyond, no steps or longevity will be paid absent a negotiated agreement. R-13

D. Service Credit Incentive

Beginning 2023-2024, teachers who have worked in the District shall be advanced one (1) step upon achieving the following years of service with the Coloma Community Schools:

- Five (5) years
- Ten (10) years
- Fifteen (15) years
- Twenty (20) years
- Twenty-five (25) years
- Thirty (30) years. N-22

E. Additional Coursework

Acceptable coursework for consideration of credit hours on the salary schedule shall be from a regionally accredited college or university and shall be at the 500 college level or greater. Credit hours must be in a teacher's subject area or for the purpose of professional growth and have prior written approval from the superintendent. Employees must submit transcripts confirming the number of credit hours to support movement on the pay scale. The course work must have been taken concurrently or beyond completion of that degree level. R-16

1. If a change in pay is warranted, the pay change will take effect at the beginning of the semester following the semester in which the course work was completed and verified. R-13

- 2. If paperwork is pending to verify course/degree completion, the pay shall be retroactive to the beginning of the school semester following completion of the course work.
- 3. Classes which are audited shall not be considered toward the credit hours for consideration on the pay scale.
- 4. A joint committee composed of the Superintendent, a Building Administrator, and one Association representative shall meet as needed to address issues that may arise in this section. R-09

F. Tuition Reimbursement

Teachers shall be reimbursed up to \$300.00 per credit hour for six credit hours earned in a year from July 1 to June 30 for university course work which meets the criteria set forth in Article 16 D, Additional Coursework, above. Tuition reimbursement shall not be provided if the credit hours were earned through an in-service or conference which occurred during the workday or if the teacher received pay or a stipend for attendance. Tuition reimbursement shall only apply for course work outside the workday. R-22

G. Teacher Certification Incentive:

In consultation with and prior approval of the Superintendent, a teacher who earns an additional teaching endorsement toward his/her Michigan certification, enabling the teacher to teach in additional academic disciplines or core requirements at Coloma Community Schools, shall receive one extra step on the salary schedule beginning with the 2022-23 school year.

For example, if a science teacher, qualified to teach science and math, obtains an additional teaching endorsement in language arts, that teacher shall earn an extra step on the salary schedule. R-22

H. National Board Certification Incentive

Beginning with the 2022-23 school year, any teacher completing their National Board Certification shall be advanced one (1) step on the salary schedule. This provision is only good for one subject area or certification per teacher resulting in only one step advancement on the salary schedule. N-22

Article 14: Extra-curricular Salary Schedule

		Non-Staff District Staff					
BLDG	Club/Additional Pay	1-4	5-8	9+	1-4	5-8	9+
HS	Freshman Class Advisor	\$750	\$800	\$850	\$783	\$835	\$887
HS	Sophomore Class Advisor	\$1,150	\$1,200	\$1,250	\$1,200	\$1,253	\$1,305
HS	Junior Class Advisor	\$2,600	\$2,850	\$3,100	\$2,714	\$2,975	\$3,236
HS	Senior Class Advisor	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	National Honor Society	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Student Council Advisor	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Spanish Club	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Academic Challenge Co-Advisor	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Metal Works Clubs Advisor	\$1,500	\$1 <u>,625</u>	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Gear Heads Club	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Art Club	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Drama Club	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	SSD Coordinator	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Robotics Club Advisor	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Film Club	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
HS	Choir Director	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$3,080	\$3,393	\$3,706
HS	Band Director	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$4,646	\$5,090	\$5,533
HS	Yearbook Advisor	\$2,300	\$2,400	\$2,500	\$2,401	\$2,506	\$2,610
JH	Honor Club	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
JH	Robotics Club Advisor	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
JH	Yearbook Advisor	\$1,000	\$1,050	\$1,100	\$1,044	\$1,097	\$1,149
JH	Student Council	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
CI	Robotics Club Advisor	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
District	WIDA Assessment Coordinator	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
District	PLC Leader N-19	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$275	\$275	\$275
District	School Improvement Committee N-21	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$275	\$275	\$275
District	PBIS Team	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$275	\$275	\$275
District	Newly Board Approved Club Advisor	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853

It is expressly understood that teachers assigned to the above positions shall not acquire any tenure-type status in those positions.

R-22

Article 15: Athletic Salary Schedule

Baseball V Varsity \$4,550 \$4,950 \$5,325 \$4,750 \$5,168 \$5,566 Baseball Asst V Varsity \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Baseball JV JV \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Basketball Boys - Varsity Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Basketball Boys - JV JV \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Basketball Boys - 8th 8th \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Basketball Girls - Varsity Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Basketball Girls - Varsity Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Basketball Girls - Warsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Bask		Non- Staff District Staff					aff	
Baseball Asst V Varsity \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236	Team	Contract	1-4	5-8	9+	1-4	5-8	9+
Basketball Boys - Varsity	Baseball V	Varsity	\$4,550	\$4,950	\$5,325	\$4,750	\$5,168	\$5,560
Basketball Boys - Varsity	Baseball Asst V	Varsity	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Basketball Boys - JV JV \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Basketball Boys - 8th 8th \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Basketball Boys - 7th 7th \$2,650 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Basketball Girls - Varsity Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Basketball Girls - JV JV \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 \$6,466	Baseball JV	JV	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Basketball Boys - JV JV \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Basketball Boys - 8th 8th \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Basketball Boys - 7th 7th \$2,650 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Basketball Girls - Varsity Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Basketball Girls - JV JV \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 \$6,466			:			!		
Basketball Boys - 8th 8th \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236	Basketball Boys - Varsity	Varsity	\$6,050	\$6,625	\$7,100	\$6,316	\$6,917	\$7,412
Basketball Boys - 7th	Basketball Boys - JV	JV	\$3,850	\$4,125	\$4,450	\$4,019	\$4,361	\$4,646
Basketball Girls - Varsity	Basketball Boys - 8th	8th	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Basketball Girls - JV	Basketball Boys - 7th	7th	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Basketball Girls - JV					4	:		
Basketball Girls - 8th 8th \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Basketball Girls - 7th 7th \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Bowling Boys Bowling \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Bowling Girls Bowling \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Cheer Competitive Varsity \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Cheer Competitive JH (JV Position) \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,855 Cheer Sideline (CLUB) Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country V Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412	Basketball Girls - Varsity	Varsity	\$6,050	\$6,625	\$7,100	\$6,316	\$6,917	\$7,412
Basketball Girls - 7th	Basketball Girls - JV	JV	\$3,850	\$4,125	\$4,450	\$4,019	\$4,361	\$4,646
Bowling Boys Bowling \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236	Basketball Girls - 8th	8th	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Bowling Girls Bowling \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236	Basketball Girls - 7th	7th	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Bowling Girls Bowling \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236				! !	1		1	
Cheer Competitive Varsity \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Cheer Competitive JH (JV Position) \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,853 Cheer Sideline (CLUB) Varsity \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,853 Cross Country V Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Junior High \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - V Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361	Bowling Boys	Bowling	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Cheer Competitive JH (JV Position) \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,855 Cheer Sideline (CLUB) Varsity \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,855 Cross Country V Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Junior High \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,	Bowling Girls	Bowling	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Cheer Competitive JH (JV Position) \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,855 Cheer Sideline (CLUB) Varsity \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,855 Cross Country V Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Junior High \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>i</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td></td<>			i	1	1	1		
Cheer Sideline (CLUB) Varsity \$1,500 \$1,625 \$1,775 \$1,566 \$1,697 \$1,853 Cross Country V Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Junior High \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$	Cheer Competitive	Varsity	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Cross Country V Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Junior High \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,176 Football 7th/8th Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,176 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236	Cheer Competitive	JH (JV Position)	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Junior High \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th <t< td=""><td>Cheer Sideline (CLUB)</td><td>Varsity</td><td>\$1,500</td><td>\$1,625</td><td>\$1,775</td><td>\$1,566</td><td>\$1,697</td><td>\$1,853</td></t<>	Cheer Sideline (CLUB)	Varsity	\$1,500	\$1,625	\$1,775	\$1,566	\$1,697	\$1,853
Girls/Boys Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Cross Country JH Junior High \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236 Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Head Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th	·				:		!	
Football - V Head Varsity \$6,050 \$6,625 \$7,100 \$6,316 \$6,917 \$7,412 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,176 Football 7th/8th Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,176 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236	·		00.050	04.405	04.450	04.040		
Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Head Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,230 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 \$4,000 \$4,							T	
Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,646 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,176 Football 7th/8th Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,176 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,236	Cross Country JH	Junior High	<u> \$∠,65U</u>	1\$2,875	<u> \$3,100</u>	\$2,767	1\$3,002	\$3,236
Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,230	Faceball V	He and Manaka.	66.050	\$6.60E	67.400	\$6.246	86 047	67.440
Football - V Asst Asst Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,230								
Football - JV Head Junior Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640 Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,230								
Football - JV Asst Asst Junior Varsity \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Head Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,230								
Football 7th/8th Head Head Junior High (8th) \$3,400 \$3,700 \$4,000 \$3,550 \$4,249 \$4,170 Football 7th/8th Asst Junior High (8th) \$2,650 \$2,875 \$3,100 \$2,767 \$3,002 \$3,230					·			
Football 7th/8th							1	
				1	1		1	
Golf Varsity Varsity \$3,850 \$4,125 \$4,450 \$4,019 \$4,361 \$4,640	1 Ootball 7 til/8til	Assistantor right (oth)	<u>ι ψε,υυυ</u>	Ψ2,010	Ψυ, 100	Ψ2,101	<u> Ψυ,υυΖ</u>	Ψυ,Ζυυ
ται σιιστή ται στο μπ, 120 μπ, 100 μπ, 10 μπ, 001 μπ, 000	Golf Varsity	Varsity	\$3,850	\$4 125	\$4.450	\$4 010	\$4 361	\$4 646
	Con varsity	vaisity	1 40,000	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Ψ-,ου	Ψ-7,013	 47,001	, 41,010
Soccer Boys Varsity \$4,550 \$4,950 \$5,325 \$4,750 \$5,168 \$5,560	Socret Roys	Varsity	\$4.550	\$4 950	\$5 325	\$4 750	\$5 168	\$5 560
Soccer Girls Varsity \$4,550 \$4,950 \$5,325 \$4,750 \$5,168 \$5,56	,							
	Joccei Giris	vaisity	1 Ψ-1,000	14-1900	WU,UZU	 4-7,700	ΨΟ, 100	, 40,000

Softball V	Varsity	\$4,550	\$4,950	\$5,325	\$4,750	\$5168	\$5560
Softball Asst V	Varsity	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3002	\$3236
Softball JV	JV	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3002	\$3236
Track Boys	Varsity	\$4,550	\$4,950	\$5,325	\$4,750	\$5,168	\$5,560
Track Boys Asst	Varsity	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Track Girls	Varsity	\$4,550	\$4,950	\$5,325	\$4,750	\$5,168	\$5,560
Track Girls Asst	Varsity	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Track Junior High	7th/8th	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Track JH asst	7th/8th	\$2,275	\$2,500	\$2,675	\$2,375	\$2,610	\$2,793
		!				i	:
Volleyball - V	Head Varsity	\$4,550	\$4,950	\$5,325	\$4,750	\$5,168	\$5,560
Volleyball - JV	Junior Varsity	\$3,400	\$3,700	\$4,000	\$3,550	\$4,249	\$4,176
Volleyball - 8	8th grade	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Volleyball - 7	7th grade	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
				1			1
Wrestling Varsity	Varsity	\$6,050	\$6,625	\$7,100	\$6,316	\$6,917	\$7,412
Wrestling JH head	JH Head	\$2,650	\$2,875	\$3,100	\$2,767	\$3,002	\$3,236
Wrestling JV	JV Head	\$3,850	\$4,125	\$4,450	\$4,019	\$4,307	\$4,646

It is expressly understood that teachers assigned to the above positions shall not acquire any tenure-type status in those positions.

R-22

Article 16: Fringe Benefits

A. Insurance

Upon proper application and acceptance for enrollment by the appropriate insurance underwriter, policyholder and/or carrier, the Board shall make premium payments on behalf of full-time teachers and their eligible dependents. All subsequent years of this contract, the insurance plan will be subject to renegotiation. R-16

The Board shall provide, as described below, an amount per month per full-time equivalency teacher to be used for the purpose of Health, Dental, Life and Disability insurance benefits for the teacher employee group.

In the event the cost of the total group's coverage exceeds the amount funded by this paragraph, the remaining premium shall be composited and deducted from each employee who receives health insurance. This amount will be covered by a proration schedule.

In the event the total premium is less than the funded amount, the residual funds will be retained for credit against future premiums.

For employees electing health insurance, the Board will contribute the assigned maximum hard cap figures, as determined by the Department of Treasury for the state of Michigan, for health care premiums and ancillary benefits outlined below.

CHOICE OF BENEFITS – WMHIP R-22

Health	BCBS – PPO – CB500, RX1, Hearing \$500/\$1000 deductible
Health	BCBS – PPO – HSA - Flexible Blue 2, RX6 \$1400/\$2800 deductible (As determined by the State Department Treasury)
Health	BCBS – PPO – HSA - Flexible Blue 3, RX7 \$2000/\$4000 deductible
Cash Option	\$350 month
Vision	EyeMed
Dental	BCBS 100% Class I 50% Class II & IV
Negotiated Long Term Disability	60% to \$4,000 Month Maximum 90 Calendar Days — Modified Fill Pre Existing Conditions Waiver — Yes

	Freeze on Offsets – Yes Alcoholism/Nervous Waiver – Two Year Limitation Mental/Nervous Waiver – Two Year Limitation
Negotiated Life	\$25,000 with AD&D

If a teacher opts out of health insurance then they will receive the cash in lieu option. Teachers have the option to elect or opt out of health insurance, dental and vision. They are not required to take all 3 benefits. N-19

If a teacher wants to continue contributions to a tax-sheltered annuity, the teacher shall sign a salary reduction agreement to make those contributions. The salary reduction contributions shall not be part of the Flexible Benefits Plan. Also under current IRS rulings, group dependent life insurance is not a permissible benefit under the Flexible Benefits Plan. If a teacher wants to obtain group dependent life insurance, the teacher shall pay the cost of coverage on an after-tax, payroll deduction basis. The payments shall not be part of the Flexible Benefits Plan. N-96

The teacher is responsible for assuring completion of all forms and documents required for his/her participation in the above-described insurance programs. The Employer, by payments of its share of the insurance premium payments indicated above, shall be relieved from any and all liability with respect to insurance or annuity benefits. Such matters shall be excluded from the scope of the grievance procedure, except the Employer's failure to remit contractual premium amounts required of it.

The Board shall not make premium contributions prohibited by state or federal law or that could result in a penalty to the district. N-02

B. Retirement Benefit

Teachers retiring through MPSERS who provide notice by March 1 of retirement at the end of the school year and have at least 100 hundred (100) accumulated paid leave days will receive \$2500.00 plus \$50.00 a day for each day over one hundred, capping at \$5,000.00 R-13. Payment will be made on or before November 1 following retirement. R-16

C. The Board agrees to deduct from the salaries of teachers, upon their written authorization, optional insurance benefits, and contributions to the United Way. The parties agree that the Coloma Community Schools shall participate in the Michigan Retirement Investment Consortium section 403(b) Tax-Sheltered Annuity Plan. The Board agrees that the following annuity vendors will be included in this Plan: Ameriprise Financial Services, AIG Valic, Paradigm Equities/MEA Financial Services, Waddell & Reed, Plan Member, GLP & Associates, Life Ins. Co. of the Southwest, Mainstay Investments, and the Legend Group. R-19

Article 17: School Year Calendar

A. The school year calendar shall be based on 181 working days for teachers, and 183 working days for teachers new to the system. Student days shall be based on the recommended county calendar as prepared by the Berrien County Intermediate School District. R-16

B. Inclement Weather

Nothing in this article shall require the Board to keep schools open in the event of severe inclement weather or when otherwise prevented by an Act of God. Should a closing because of conditions not within the control of the Board require the scheduling of additional days of student instruction to meet the state requirement for days and/or instructional hours, such additional days and/or hours will, to the extent possible, and with the consultation of the Association, be rescheduled at the end of the current school calendar or mutually agreeable time. R-99

When an Act of God or a Board directive causes the closing of a school, teachers shall be excused from reporting to duty without loss of pay for up to three (3) days. For emergency closing beyond the first three (3) days, and in which the state does not require to be rescheduled to meet the days and/or instructional hours, the Board reserves the right to reschedule those days as teacher professional development either in, the week preceding the reporting date for teachers in the fall of the next school year, or at a mutually agreeable time with the Association. The first makeup day shall constitute a cyber day dedicated to the completion of required online safety training courses. Teachers that do not attend the required professional development would be docked pay for those days missed. R-19

If, at any time during the life of this Agreement, it becomes lawful to count as days of pupil instruction those days when pupil instruction is not provided due to conditions not within the control of the Board such as severe storms, fires, epidemic or health conditions, it is agreed that the following school closing provision shall become immediately effective:

When an Act of God or a Board directive forces the closing of a school or other facility of the Board, teachers shall be excused from reporting to duty without loss of pay. Days lost to school closing pursuant to the aforementioned circumstances shall not be rescheduled.

Article 18: Term of Agreement

This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification and signature by the Board and the Association and shall continue in effect through the 30th day of June 2025, at which time it will terminate. This Agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated. R-22

The school schedule for teachers and students shall be open for negotiations for each year of the Agreement. Negotiations shall commence not later than March 1, 2023, with the objective of concluding bargaining by August 1, 2023. Should bargaining not result in an agreement by the latter date, either party shall have recourse to the impasse resolution procedures under the Public Employment Relations Act. R-22

If an Emergency Financial Manager is appointed by the State of Michigan, the Emergency Manager may reject, modify, or terminate the collective bargaining agreement in his/her sole discretion. This authority is a prohibited subject of bargaining under the public employment relations act (PERA). N-13

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives.

Coloma Education Association

Northern Berrien County Education Assn

Coloma Board of Education

Coloma Board of Education

_

APPENDIX A

MENTOR TEACHER

QUALIFICATION:

- 1. Practitioner in the same certification or specialty area as the new teacher with whom he/she is paired.(It is realized that under some circumstances, this may not be feasible)
- Tenured teacher.
- 3. Demonstrated excellence in teaching
- 4. Be located in the same building. (It is realized that under some circumstances, this may not be feasible).
- 5. Under special circumstances, one or more of the above qualifications may be waived by the Superintendent.

REPORTS TO:

Building Principal

JOB GOAL:

Assist and advise the probationary teacher in a manner that will help the new teacher become a successful, caring, collaborative team member and positive contributor as an employee of the Coloma Community Schools.

PERFORMANCE RESPONSIBILITIES:

- 1. Provide counseling and advisory services to the probationer as they relate to the teaching profession.
- 2. Advise the probationer of education strategies and practices as prescribed by the new teacher handbook/curriculum guide.
- 3. Advise the probationer of district procedures and expectations as they relate to discipline, classroom management, lesson plans, student assessment, grading, professional growth, etc.
- 4. The mentor teachers will make themselves available to be observed by the probationer.
- 5. Provide feedback about the probationer's instructional skills.
- 6. Encourage professional development of the probationer.
- 7. Promote a positive attitude about teaching.
- 8. Initiate opportunities for collaboration and interaction with the mentor/teacher team. (Document in mentor handbook)

LENGTH OF TERM AND WITHDRAWAL:

- 1. It is understood that either the mentor or probationary teacher may withdraw from the relationship under the counsel of the principal
- 2. In the event that the mentor wishes to withdraw before the end of the three-year term, the probationary teacher will be assigned to another mentor teacher.
- 3. In the event that the probationary teacher wishes to withdraw before the end of the three-year term, the probationary teacher will be assigned to another mentor teacher, who will complete the remainder of the three-year term.

4. It is understood because of the unique nature of being a mentor teacher, that this is a three-year responsibility.

REVIEW COMMITTEE

During the 2022-2023 school year, a committee consisting of administrators and Association representatives shall review and amend the role and responsibilities of Mentor Teacher assignments.

N-19

APPENDIX B

MERIT PAY

In recognition that a teacher's regular presence in the classroom has a positive effect on student outcomes, the District will offer an incentive for teachers to attend school regularly and utilize their paid leave days only when they deem it absolutely necessary for personal/family illness or personal business. Therefore, the Board of Education will offer each staff member that works under the local collective bargaining agreement and achieves at least an effective rating on their end-of-year evaluation the following:

- A. Any staff member that has perfect attendance (does not use any paid leave days for sick/personal business) during a given school year a \$500 bonus.
- B. Any staff member that uses only one-half (0.5) to two (2) days of paid leave (sick/personal business) during a given school year a \$300 bonus.
- C. Any staff member that uses only two and one-half (2.5) to four (4) days of paid leave (sick/personal business) during a given school year a \$100 bonus. N-19